SOLEBURY TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

March 17, 2020 – 6:00 P.M.

Solebury Township Hall

MEETING MINUTES

Attendance: Mark Baum Baicker, Chair, and Dennis H. Carney, Township Manager. Via Conference Call: Kevin Morrissey, Vice-Chair, Noel Barrett, John S. Francis, Robert McEwan, and Catherine Cataldi, Secretary

All attendees were conferenced into the meeting.

There were no attendees in the audience.

Audio recording device was then turned on.

I. The meeting was called to order followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mr. Baum Baicker made a statement regarding the COVID-19 epidemic (copy of which is attached). Mr. Francis questioned if the statement could be posted at the Post Office and Grocery Stores. Mr. Baum Baicker and Mr. Carney are to look into having the information posted.

II. Approval of Bills Payable – March 12, 2020

Res. 2020-57 – Upon a motion by Mr. Mr. Baum Baicker, seconded by Mr. Morrissey, the list of Bills Payable dated March 12, 2020 was unanimously approved as prepared and posted.

III. Announcements/Resignations/Appointments – No Announcements

IV. Supervisors Comment

- Mr. McEwan commented on the 2020 Census. The Census has started and can be completed online at my2020census.gov.
- Mr. Morrissey asked if the instructions on how to register for an online ballot could be posted to the Township website. Mr. Baum Baicker is to discuss with the Township Solicitor.

V. Public Comment – No Public Comment

VI. Public Hearing

Pension Ordinance – Authorization to Adopt

The proposed ordinance (copy of which is attached) amends the non-uniform pension plan administered by the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System to conform with new IRS Regulations. The Board approved the advertisement of the Pension Ordinance at the March 3, 2020 Board of Supervisor meeting.

Res. 2020-58 – Upon a motion by Mr. Baum Baicker, seconded by Mr. Barrett, it was unanimously agreed to adopt the Pension Ordinance.

Bond Ordinance – Authorization to Adopt

The proposed ordinance (copy of which is attached) authorizes the incurrence of debt of the Township of Solebury by the issuance of general obligation bonds, in one or more series, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$6,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds open space projects and paying the costs of issuing the bonds; authorizing the preparation and filing of a debt statement and other documentation; covenanting to create a sinking fund and to budget, appropriate and pay debt service on the bonds and pledging the full faith, credit and taxing power of the township for the bonds; providing for the substantial form, date, maturity dates, interest rates, redemption provisions and other provisions of such bonds; authorizing the execution of a continuing disclosure certificate; finding that a private sale by negotiation of the bonds is in the best financial interest of the township and authorizing the acceptance of a proposal for the purchase of the bonds and an addendum thereto in the event such addendum meets certain stipulated requirements; appointing a paying agent and sinking fund depository; authorizing the designation of the bonds as qualified tax exempt obligations; stating authority for enactment of ordinance; stating authority for enactment of ordinance; stating authority for enactment of ordinance; stating authorizing other necessary action.

Res. 2020-59 – Upon a motion by Mr. Baum Baicker, seconded by Mr. Barrett, it was unanimously agreed to adopt the Bond Ordinance.

VII. New Business

Land Preservation Committee – Act 153 – Certification of Eligible Properties to NHS School District The Board of Supervisors certifies properties eligible for the Act 153 program on an annual basis to the New Hope Solebury School District. This program authorizes the school district to exempt by resolution certain real property from further Millage increases imposed.

Res. 2020-60 – Upon a motion by Mr. Baum Baicker, seconded by Mr. Morrissey, it was unanimously agreed to certify the list of properties eligible under the Act 153 Program and the Administration is authorized to forward the list to the New Hope Solebury School District as prepared.

Land Preservation – Manoff Property (3157 Comfort Road, TMP No. 41-018-011) – Agreement of Sale for Conservation Easement

The property is a parcel consisting of 35.72 acres located on Comfort Road. Gary and Amy Manoff have agreed to the conservation easement purchase price of \$500,000.00.

Res. 2020-61 – Upon a motion by Mr. Baum Baicker, seconded by Mr. Barrett, it was unanimously agreed to authorize Mark Baum Baicker, Chair to sign the Agreement of Sale for Conservation Easement for the Property of Gary and Amy Manoff (3157 Comfort Road, TMP No. 41-018-011).

Agricultural Security Area – Application of James & Adrienne Mageras – TMP Nos. 41-036-134, 41-036-135, and 41-036-136

Applications have been received from James & Adrienne Mageras for inclusion of TMP Nos. 41-036-134, 41-036-135, and 41-036-136 in the Solebury Township Agricultural Security Area.

Res.2020-62 – Upon a motion by Mr. Baum Baicker, seconded by Mr. Barrett, it was unanimously agreed to acknowledge the receipt of an application from James and Adrienne Mageras for inclusion of TMP Nos. 41-036-134, 41-036-135 and 41-036-136 in the Solebury Township Agricultural Security Area.

Highway Material – Bid Award

Bids for black top and miscellaneous stone and aggregate have been received by the Bucks County Consortium and reviewed by Solebury Township Administration.

Res.2020-63 – Upon a motion by Mr. Baum Baicker, seconded by Mr. Barrett, it was unanimously agreed to award the bid for:

- No. 2 ¾" stone; Rip-Rap Mixed Stone; and Super Pave 19.00 Binder to: Hanson Aggregates BMC INC
- > No. 2B ¾" Stone; and No. 2A Stone Mix to: Plumstead Materials
- **R-4 Stone; and Super Pave 12.5 mm Wearing to: Eureka Stone Quarry, Inc.**
- Super Pave 9.5 mm Wearing to: Miller Materials
- Koch 9005 Crack Sealer and Koch 9075-r Flex-a-fill and Crafco Poliflex II Crack Seal to: Asphalt Maintenance Solutions, LLC.

Declaration of State of Emergency in Solebury Township (Copy of which is attached)

Res.2020-64 – Upon a motion by Mr. Baum Baicker, seconded by Mr. Barrett, The Board of Supervisors of Solebury Township, pursuant to the provisions of Section 7501 (b) of the Pennsylvania Emergency Management Services Code, 35 Pa. C.S.A. 7101 et seq., unanimously agreed to declare the existence of a public health local disaster emergency in Solebury Township, Bucks County, Pennsylvania.

VIII. Public Comment – No Public Comment

IX. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 6:21 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Catherine Cataldi Secretary Mark Baum Baicker's Statement March 17, 2020:

Over the weekend, Governor Wolf issued an order that effectively shut down all non-essential businesses in Bucks County and all schools. Essential retain establishments including food stores, gas stations, and pharmacies will remain open. Solebury Township has been following all such directives issued by the county, state, and federal governments. We have posted on our website information about the Coronavirus and its impact on our Township and its residents, as well as information about the actions Solebury Township is taking during this unprecedented time. This has been and will continue to be updated daily as appropriate. We urge all residents who have not already done so to sign up for Township email notifications by registering on our homepage (www.soleburytwp.org).

We are conducting our regular Board of Supervisors meeting tonight on a skeleton basis. Only our Township Manager and I are in physical attendance. The other four Supervisors have called in so that we can conduct business and vote on important matters. We have limited our agenda to items that need to be addressed.

We have canceled all Township committee meetings through the end of April and have designated approximately half of our Township administration staff to work remotely effective yesterday. Our next scheduled Board of Supervisors meeting on April 7th is being canceled. We will hold the following meeting (on April 21st) since there are a number of items that we will need to consider. Whether it will be a traditional in-person meeting will depend upon the conditions at that time. We are currently working on "virtual" alternatives for future Supervisors' meetings as well as Township committee meetings, for as long as this crisis continues.

The Township is continuing to provide all essential services. This of course includes police as well as public works. Each night, all Township buildings receive a thorough cleaning, including a wipe-down of door handles, surfaces, and areas with which the public may come into contact.

We encourage all residents to follow the instructions of health care experts, including frequent handwashing and/or use of hand sanitizers, social distancing, limiting food shopping trips, etc. Solebury Township Parks & Recreation is ending all sports activities and group use of Township park athletic fields and facilities through Monday, April 13, 2020, after which time the situation will be re-evaluated for appropriate action. This is designed to minimize contact that might result in exposure to coronavirus and is in keeping with recommendations from state health officials and actions taken by professional and amateur sports leagues across the country.

We are tonight declaring a state of emergency in Solebury Township. Again, half of our Township staff is already working remotely and those who are scheduled to come to the township building each day will continue to do so. As of today, we are locking the doors to the township building. We are requesting that residents hold off on coming to the township building for non-essential services. Those who need to come in for an essential reason—such as dropping off or picking up a permit, plans, or other essential documents—should call the township's phone number (215-297-5656) during regular business hours and make advance arrangements with township staff.

By limiting contact with Township staff, we are hopeful of avoiding a situation where either an unknowingly infected Township employee or member of the public contributes to the spread of COVID-19.

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-002

AN ORDINANCE OF SOLEBURY TOWNSHIP, BUCKS COUNTY, COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, ELECTING TO AMEND ITS NON-UNIFORM PENSION PLAN ADMINISTERED BY THE PENNSYLVANIA MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM PURSUANT TO ARTICLE IV OF THE PENNSYLVANIA MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT LAW; AGREEING TO BE BOUND BY ALL PROVISIONS OF THE PENNSYLVANIA MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT LAW AS AMENDED AND AS APPLICABLE TO MEMBER MUNICIPALITIES. IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY SOLEBURY TOWNSHIP, BUCKS COUNTY, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION I. Solebury Township (the Township), having established a non-uniform pension plan administered by the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (the System), hereby elects to amend its Non-Uniform Pension Plan administered by the System in accordance with Article IV of the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement Law, 53 P.S. §881.101 et seq. (Retirement Law), and does hereby agree to be bound by all the requirements and provisions of the Retirement Law and the Municipal Pension Plan Funding Standard and Recovery Act, 53 P.S. §895.101 et seq., and to assume all obligations, financial and otherwise, placed upon member municipalities.

SECTION II. As part of this Ordinance, the Township agrees that the System shall administer and provide the benefits set forth in the amended Non-Uniform Pension Plan Document entered into between the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement Board and the Township effective as of the date specified in the adoption agreement (the Contract).

SECTION III. The Township acknowledges that by passage and adoption of this Ordinance, the Township officially accepts the Contract and the financial obligations resulting from the administration of the Contract.

SECTION IV. Payment for any obligation established by the adoption of this Ordinance and the Contract shall be made by the Township in accordance with the Retirement Law and the Municipal Pension Plan Funding Standard and Recovery Act. The Township hereby assumes all liability for any unfundedness created due to the benefit structure set forth in the Contract.

SECTION V. The Township intends this Ordinance to be the complete authorization of the Contract, as amended and it shall become effective as of the date specified in the adoption agreement, which is the effective date of the Contract, as amended.

SECTION VI. A duly certified copy of this Ordinance and an executed Contract shall be filed with the System.

ORDAINED this ______ day of ______ day of ______, 2020. TALLY OF VOTES – YEAS $\underline{\mathcal{S}}$ NAYS \mathcal{O}

ATTEST:

Catherin Cataldi

Reviewed by PMRS Legal Counsel

TOWNSHIP OF SOLEBURY Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

ORDINANCE NO. 2020 - 003

Enacted March 17, 2020

AUTHORIZING THE INCURRENCE OF DEBT OF THE TOWNSHIP OF SOLEBURY BY THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, IN ONE OR MORE SERIES, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$6,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS FOR OPEN SPACE PROJECTS AND PAYING THE COSTS OF ISSUING THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE PREPARATION AND FILING OF A DEBT STATEMENT AND OTHER DOCUMENTATION; COVENANTING TO CREATE A SINKING FUND AND TO BUDGET, APPROPRIATE AND PAY DEBT SERVICE ON THE BONDS AND PLEDGING THE FULL FAITH, CREDIT AND TAXING POWER OF THE TOWNSHIP FOR THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE SUBSTANTIAL FORM, DATE, MATURITY DATES, INTEREST RATES, REDEMPTION PROVISIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF SUCH BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE; FINDING THAT A PRIVATE SALE BY NEGOTIATION OF THE BONDS IS IN THE BEST FINANCIAL INTEREST OF THE TOWNSHIP AND AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A PROPOSAL FOR THE PURCHASE OF THE BONDS AND AN ADDENDUM THERETO IN THE EVENT SUCH ADDENDUM MEETS CERTAIN STIPULATED **REOUIREMENTS:** APPOINTING A PAYING AGENT AND SINKING FUND DEPOSITORY; AUTHORIZING THE DESIGNATION OF THE BONDS AS QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS; STATING AUTHORITY FOR ENACTMENT OF ORDINANCE; STATING THAT ORDINANCE IS A CONTRACT WITH REGISTERED OWNERS OF BONDS; SETTING FORTH A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; CANCELLING AND ANNULLING INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES; AND AUTHORIZING OTHER NECESSARY ACTION.

WHEREAS, the Township of Solebury, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the **"Township"**) is granted the power by the Local Government Unit Debt Act, 53 Pa. Cons. Stat. §8001 *et seq.*, as amended (the **"Act"**), to incur indebtedness and to issue bonds for the purposes of financing capital projects; and

WHEREAS, the Township desires to acquire funds for the acquisition of interests in or improvements to real property for open space, including but not limited to the preservation of environmentally sensitive areas and open space for agricultural and conservation easements, active and passive recreation, and cultural purposes as part of its open space program (the "Capital Projects"); and

WHEREAS, the Township now proposes to issue its general obligation bonds, in one or more series, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$6,000,000, to be designated generally as the Township's General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2020, or as otherwise appropriately designated in the Addendum (the "Bonds") to finance the Capital Projects and the costs and expenses of issuing the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Bonds will be issued as electoral debt under the Act pursuant to a referendum approved by the electors of the Township at the November 5, 2019 general election; and

WHEREAS, the Township has retained PFM Financial Advisors LLC, Malvern, Pennsylvania, as financial advisor in connection with the issuance of the Bonds (the "Financial Advisor"); and

WHEREAS, the Township has received a Proposal For The Purchase Of Bonds dated March 17, 2020 (the "**Proposal**") from the Financial Advisor, which sets forth the financial parameters for, conditions to, and the process for the underwriting and issuance of the Bonds, which will be supplemented by an addendum to the Proposal (the "Addendum") containing the final terms and identify the underwriter of the Bonds, consistent with the Proposal and the requirements set forth in this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, subject to the terms, provisions, parameters and requirements set forth herein, the Township desires to authorize the Capital Projects and the issuance of the Bonds; to authorize paying the costs and expenses of issuing the Bonds; to authorize the acceptance of the Proposal and an Addendum thereto and award the sale of the Bonds; to authorize issuance of electoral debt; and to authorize necessary and appropriate actions relating to the issuance of the Bonds, all in accordance with and pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED by the Board of Supervisors as follows:

Section 1. <u>Authorization of the Capital Projects and Incurrence of Indebtedness:</u> Statement of Useful Lives of the Capital Projects.

An increase in the authorized debt of the Township is hereby authorized in the amount not to exceed \$6,000,000, through the issuance of the Bonds, which increase together with the existing net debt of the Township will not result in a violation of the limitations of the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or of the Act. The Bonds may be issued in one or more series, and shall be designated as set forth in the accepted Addendum.

The Township hereby authorizes and shall undertake the Capital Projects described in the recitals hereto. The Township hereby reserves the right to undertake the Capital Projects in such order and at such time or times as it shall determine and to allocate a portion of the proceeds of the

Bonds and other available moneys to the final costs of the projects in such amounts and order of priority as it shall determine; but the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used solely to pay "costs," as defined in the Act, of the Capital Projects or, upon appropriate amendments to this Ordinance, to pay the costs of other capital projects for which the Township is authorized to incur indebtedness.

Realistic cost estimates have been obtained for each of the Capital Projects by taking bids or obtaining professional cost estimates from architects, engineers, financial advisors and other persons qualified by experience to provide the same.

It is hereby determined and stated that the realistic estimated useful lives of each of the Capital Projects is in excess of thirty (30) years.

Section 2. <u>Authorization of Issuance of Bonds: Type of Indebtedness.</u> The Township shall issue, pursuant to the Act and this Ordinance, the Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$6,000,000, in one or more series with appropriate series designations, to provide funds for and toward the costs of the Capital Projects and paying the costs of issuing the Bonds as provided in Section 1 hereof. The proceeds of the Bonds will be applied to the Capital Projects and the costs of issuing the Bonds. The debt authorized hereunder shall be incurred as electoral debt.

Section 3. <u>Sale of Bonds.</u> The Bonds shall be sold in accordance with the Proposal and the requirements of this Ordinance. After due consideration, the Board of Supervisors hereby finds and determines, on the basis of the advice and recommendation of its Financial Advisor and all available information, that a private sale of the Bonds by negotiation is in the best financial interest of the Township.

Section 4. <u>Type of Bonds.</u> The Bonds, when issued, will be general obligation bonds.

Section 5. <u>Execution of Bonds.</u> The Bonds shall be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors, shall have the corporate seal of the Township or a facsimile thereof affixed thereto, duly attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary (or any Acting Secretary appointed for such purposes) and shall be authenticated by the certificate endorsed thereon, manually signed by a duly authorized officer of the Paying Agent hereinafter designated.

Section 6. <u>Award and Sale of Bonds</u>. Subject to the approval of the Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development, as required by the provisions of the Act, the Township shall and does hereby accept the Proposal for the purchase of the Bonds in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Ordinance and the Proposal. A copy of the Proposal shall be attached to this Ordinance and lodged with the official minutes of this meeting and is hereby incorporated herein by reference. The proper officers of the Township are hereby authorized and directed to endorse the acceptance of the Township on said Proposal.

Upon final pricing of the Bonds, the Financial Advisor will present to the Township an Addendum setting forth the final terms and conditions of the Bonds, including the final

3

principal amount, interest rates, series designation, redemption provisions and purchase price for the Bonds. As long as the terms and conditions set forth in the Addendum satisfy the parameters set forth below, the Chair or the Vice Chair in the absence of the Chair is hereby authorized to approve the final terms and conditions of the Bonds and to accept and to execute the Addendum for the purchase of the Bonds in the name and on behalf of the Township and to cause the official seal of the Township to be affixed thereto, and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary or any Acting Secretary is hereby authorized to attest to such acceptance and execution. The execution and delivery of the Addendum by the appropriate officers of the Township shall constitute conclusive evidence of the approval and acceptance of the Addendum by the Township.

It is hereby determined that an acceptable Addendum for the purchase of the Bonds must meet the terms of the Proposal and the following parameters:

- i. The net purchase price for the Bonds to be purchased pursuant to the Addendum shall not be less than 95% nor more than 125% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds issued (including underwriting discount and original discount or premium, plus accrued interest.
- ii. The annual principal maturities (whether by maturity or mandatory sinking fund redemption) and interest rates shall not exceed the maximum amounts set forth on **Exhibit A** attached hereto.
- iii. An accepted Addendum must identify the series designation, the dated date and the interest payment dates and the principal retirement dates (whether such retirement be by maturity or mandatory sinking fund redemption) for the Bonds.

Section 7. <u>Terms of Bonds.</u> The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form, in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, shall be numbered consecutively, as issued, beginning with the number 1. Each Bond shall bear interest accruing from a dated date, which date shall be not earlier than thirty (30) days prior to the Bond's date of initial issuance and delivery, as more fully specified in an Addendum.

The Bonds shall bear interest at rates not to exceed the maximum rates of interest set forth in **Exhibit A** attached hereto and shall mature, whether by maturity or mandatory sinking fund redemption, in the amounts not to exceed the maximum amounts as set forth on **Exhibit A** attached hereto and made a part hereof, as shall be specifically set forth in an Addendum.

Section 8. <u>Redemption of Bonds: Payment Date.</u> The Bonds may be subject to optional or mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity, on such dates and under such terms as determined in Section 6 and as shall be set forth in the definitive Bonds as delivered to the purchaser in accordance with the provisions hereof and the Addendum.

If any of the Bonds subject to redemption is of a denomination larger than \$5,000, a portion of such Bond may be redeemed, but such Bond shall be redeemed only in \$5,000 portions of its denomination or any whole multiple thereof. For the purpose of selecting any of the Bonds for redemption, each of the Bonds subject to redemption shall be treated as representing that number of Bonds which is obtained by dividing the denomination thereof by \$5,000, each \$5,000 portion thereof being subject to redemption. In the case of partial redemption of any of the Bonds, payment of the redemption price will be made only upon surrender of such Bond in exchange for Bonds of like form of authorized denominations in aggregate amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof.

Any redemption, as hereinbefore authorized, shall be made pursuant to redemption notice mailed as set forth below, specifying: (1) the series, maturity and numbers of the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption; (2) the date fixed for redemption; (3) the redemption price or prices applicable to the Bonds to be redeemed; and (4) that on the date fixed for redemption such Bonds will be payable at the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent and that on and after such date interest thereon shall cease to accrue; by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by the first class mail not less than thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owners of Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part at the addresses shown on the registration books, or after waiver of such notice executed by the registered owners of all Bonds to be redeemed shall have been filed with the Paying Agent, provided, however, that failure to give such notice by mailing or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof with respect to any one Bond shall not affect the validity of any proceeding for redemption of any other Bonds so called for redemption.

On and after the date designated for redemption and notice having been so given or waived, money for payment of the principal, premium, if any, and accrued interest being held by the Paying Agent, interest on the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall cease to accrue and the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under this Ordinance, and registered owners of the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall have no rights with respect thereto, except to receive payment of the principal to be redeemed and accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, together with the redemption premium, if any.

If the date for payment of the principal of, or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.

Section 9. <u>Form of Bonds.</u> The form of the Bonds, the Paying Agent's authentication certificate and the notation for registration, hereby approved, shall be with appropriate insertions, omissions and variations substantially as set forth in <u>Exhibit B</u> attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

Section 10. <u>Appointment of Securities Depository</u>. The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), shall act as securities depository for the Bonds on behalf of the firms which participate in the DTC book-entry system (the "DTC **Participants"**). The ownership of one fully registered Bond for each maturity of Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. The Township shall cause the Bonds to be delivered to DTC or the Paying Agent, as custodian for DTC, on or before the date of issuance of the Bonds.

Pursuant to the book-entry only system, any person for whom a DTC Participant acquires an interest in the Bonds (the "Beneficial Owner") will not receive bond certificates and will not be the registered owner thereof. Ownership interests in the Bonds may be purchased by or through DTC Participants. Receipt by the Beneficial Owners (through any DTC Participant) of timely payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, is subject to DTC making such payment to DTC Participants and such DTC Participants making payment to Beneficial Owners. Neither the Township nor the Paying Agent will have any direct responsibility or obligation to such DTC Participants or the persons for whom they act as nominees for any failure of DTC or such DTC Participants to act or make any payment with respect to the Bonds.

The Township is authorized to execute such documents as may be necessary or desirable in connection with DTC's services as securities depository including a blanket letter of representation obligating the Township to give certain notices to DTC and to meet certain requirements relating to Bond payments.

If DTC determines to discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time, the Township officials then holding the offices set forth in Section 5 of this Ordinance are hereby authorized to designate a successor securities depository or to deliver certificates to or upon the order of the registered owners of the Bonds.

Section 11. <u>Covenant as to Tax Law and Designation of Bonds.</u> The Township hereby covenants with the holders from time to time of the Bonds that (i) it will not take any action, or fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds under Section 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"); and (ii) it will make no investment or other use of the proceeds of the Bonds, which, if such investment or use had been reasonably expected on the date of issuance of the Bonds, would cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code and the rules and regulations promulgated. This covenant shall extend throughout the term of the Bonds and shall apply to all amounts which are proceeds of the Bonds for the purposes of said section, rules and regulations. Neither the Paying Agent nor any other official or agent of the Township shall make any investment inconsistent with the foregoing covenant. The Treasurer and all other Township officials responsible for investment shall follow the advice or direction of Bond Counsel in respect to the Bonds as to investments which may be made in compliance with this covenant.

Subject to the final aggregate principal amount of the Bonds as provided in an Addendum and a determination by bond counsel that the applicable requirements of Section 265 of the Code have been met, the Township is authorized to designate each of the Bonds as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code.

The Township hereby authorizes the proper officers of the Township to execute a certificate to that effect at the time of the closing in the event such designation is to be made.

Section 12. <u>Covenant as to Rebate</u>. The Township covenants, if it is required to do so by the Code, to rebate to the United States an amount equal to the sum of (A) the excess of (i) the amount earned on all nonpurpose investments (other than investments attributable to an excess described in this Section), over (ii) the amount which would have been earned if such nonpurpose investments were invested at a rate equal to the yield on the Bonds, plus (B) any income attributable to the excess described in (A) above except as regulations may otherwise provide. The amount which is required by this Section to be paid to the United States shall be paid in installments at least once every five years. Each installment shall be in an amount which ensures that 90% of the amount calculated under this Section at the time payment is required shall have been paid to the United States. The last installment shall be made no later than sixty (60) days after the day on which the last Bond is redeemed and shall be in an amount sufficient to pay the remaining balance of the amount calculated with respect to the Bonds.

Section 13. <u>Covenant to Pay Debt Service; Pledge of Taxing Power.</u> The Township covenants to and with registered owners, from time to time, of the Bonds which shall be outstanding from time to time, pursuant to this Ordinance, that the Township (i) shall include the amount of the debt service for the Bonds, for each fiscal year of the Township in which such sums are payable, in its budget for that fiscal year, (ii) shall appropriate such amounts from its general revenues for the payment of such debt service, and (iii) shall duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid from the Sinking Fund or any other of its revenues or funds the principal of each of the Bonds and the interest thereon at the dates and place and in the manner stated therein, according to the true intent and meaning thereof; and, for such budgeting, appropriation and payment, the Township shall and does pledge, irrevocably, its full faith, credit and taxing power. As provided in the Act, the foregoing covenant of the Township shall be specifically enforceable.

Section 14. <u>Creation of and Deposits in Sinking Fund.</u> The Township covenants that there shall be and there is hereby established and that it shall hereafter maintain one or more sinking funds (collectively, the "Sinking Fund") as appropriately designated for the Bonds, including if applicable multiple series or subseries or mandatory sinking fund, to be held by the Sinking Fund Depository hereinafter appointed (or such substitute or successor Sinking Fund Depository which shall hereafter be appointed in accordance with the provisions of the Act) and into said Sinking Fund there shall be paid all moneys necessary to pay the debt service on the Bonds when and as the same are collected, and said Sinking Fund shall be applied exclusively to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as covenanted and to no other purpose whatsoever, except as may be authorized by law, until the same shall have been fully paid.

Conditioned upon the issuance of the Bonds, the Township shall deposit in the said Sinking Fund not later than the date when principal and/or interest is to become due on the Bonds a sufficient part of each aforementioned appropriation so that on each such payment date the said Sinking Fund will contain, together with any other available funds therein, sufficient money to pay in full the principal and/or interest amount then due on the Bonds or each series thereof, as applicable. The said Sinking Fund shall be secured and invested by the Sinking Fund Depository in securities or deposits authorized by the Act, upon direction of the Township, all as provided in the Act. Said deposits and securities shall be in the name of the Township but subject to withdrawal or collection only by the Sinking Fund Depository, and said deposits and securities, together with the interest thereon shall be a part of the said Sinking Fund. The Sinking Fund Depository and Paying Agent, without further action of the Township, is hereby authorized and directed to pay from the said Sinking Fund the interest on and the principal of the Bonds when due and payable.

star i se s

All income received on such deposits or investments of monies in the Sinking Fund during each applicable period shall be added to the Sinking Fund and shall be credited against the deposit next required to be made in the Sinking Fund.

All monies deposited in the Sinking Fund for the payment of the Bonds which have not been claimed by the registered owners thereof after two (2) years from the date payment is due, except where such monies are held for the payment of outstanding checks, drafts or other instruments of the Paying Agent, shall be returned to the Township. Nothing contained herein shall relieve the Township of its liability to the registered owners of unpresented Bonds.

Section 15. <u>Appointment of and Contract with Paying Agent.</u> U.S. Bank National Association, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, is hereby appointed as Paying Agent and Sinking Fund Depository for the Bonds as required by Section 8106 of the Act (the "Paying Agent"). The Paying Agent is further appointed as registrar of the Bonds and directed to maintain a registry book for the Bonds. The proper officers of the Township are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to contract with said Paying Agent for such services on usual and customary terms and also to appoint and contract with any successor in such duties.

Section 16. <u>DCED Filing</u>. The Chair of the Board of Supervisors, and the Secretary, or the Vice Chair or the Assistant Secretary or any Acting Secretary in the absence of the Chair or Secretary, or a duly-appointed successor, as the case may be, are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to prepare, execute and verify the Debt Statement of the Township, with an appended Borrowing Base Certificate, certified by a Township officer as required by Section 8110 of the Act, and to cause a complete and accurate copy of the proceedings in connection with the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds, certified by the Township Manager, Secretary or Assistant Secretary or any Acting Secretary, including the aforesaid Debt Statement, to be filed with the Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development as required by Sections 8111 and 8201 of the Act, and to pay the necessary filing fees in connection therewith.

Section 17. <u>Authorization of Official Statements.</u> The preparation of a Preliminary Official Statement for use in the marketing of the Bonds is hereby authorized. The Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors, in consultation with the Township Manager, is hereby authorized on behalf of the Township to approve the form of such Preliminary Official Statement and an Official Statement with respect to the Bonds, with such insertions and amendments as shall be necessary to reflect the final terms and provisions of the Bonds, the accepted Proposal and Addendum and this Ordinance. The Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors is hereby

2287105.1/55080

authorized to execute the Official Statement, and such execution shall constitute conclusive evidence of the approval of the Official Statement by the Township.

Section 18. Execution and Authentication of Bonds; Further Action. The appropriate officers as designated in Section 5 hereof are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute the Bonds as aforesaid in Section 5 and to cause the Bonds to be authenticated by the certificate endorsed thereon, manually signed by a duly-authorized officer of the Paying Agent designated in Section 15 hereof. The Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors and the Secretary, Assistant Secretary or any Acting Secretary of the Township, or any duly-appointed successor, as the case may be, are further authorized, empowered and directed to deliver the Bonds upon receipt of the purchase money and in accordance with the terms of the Proposal and Addendum for the purchase thereof and to execute and deliver any and all papers and documents with such additions, deletions or changes as such officers shall deem appropriate and in accordance with this Ordinance and to take such further action and to do or cause to be done any and all acts and things as may be necessary or appropriate to execute or carry out the purposes of this Ordinance, to incur the debt hereby authorized and to effectuate the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, and such actions of such officers shall be deemed the actions of the Township.

The Township's Bond Counsel is hereby authorized and directed to prepare all documents required in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds as Bond Counsel deems necessary or appropriate and to arrange for the printing thereof and of the Bonds.

Section 19. <u>Continuing Disclosure</u>. In compliance with Rule 15c2-12, under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the Township hereby authorizes and directs the appropriate officers to execute and deliver a continuing disclosure certificate on usual and customary terms. The continuing disclosure certificate shall be in form and substance as approved by the signing officers of the Township. The Chair or Vice Chair and Secretary or Assistant Secretary or Treasurer of the Township are hereby authorized and directed to execute said continuing disclosure certificate and to deliver the same at settlement on behalf of the Township.

Section 20. <u>Application of Bond Proceeds.</u> The purchase price for the Bonds, and any accrued interest payable by the purchaser identified in the Addendum, shall be paid by the purchaser to the Paying Agent on behalf of the Township. Upon receipt of the balance of such purchase price for the Bonds, including interest thereon accrued to the date of delivery, if any, the Paying Agent shall deposit the same in a settlement account. From the settlement account, the Paying Agent shall pay, or establish reserves for payment of, the costs and expenses of the financing in the amounts presented to the Board of Supervisors by the Financial Advisor which are hereby approved, and the proper officers of the Township are authorized to direct the Paying Agent to pay the issuance costs on behalf of the Township as set forth in written instructions from the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors. The Paying Agent shall transfer the proceeds of the Bonds designated for the Capital Projects and the Refinancing Program as set forth in written instructions from the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors.

Any reserves in the above-described settlement account shall be disbursed from time to time by the Paying Agent pursuant to written instructions from the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors and any balance ultimately remaining in any such reserve shall, upon written instructions of the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors, be paid over to the Township.

Section 21. <u>Bond Insurance.</u> If applicable, as determined by the Addendum to the Proposal, the purchase of municipal bond guaranty insurance with respect to the Bonds is hereby authorized. The proper officers of the Township are hereby authorized to take all action necessary or appropriate with respect to obtaining such insurance, as may be provided in the Addendum, including the payment of the premium with respect thereto.

Section 22. <u>Applicability of Act.</u> This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the Act, the laws and the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the Township hereby determines and declares that each and every matter and thing provided for herein is necessary and desirable to carry out and effect the public purposes of the Township in accordance with such laws. All of the mandatory provisions of the Act shall apply hereunder whether or not explicitly stated herein and are specifically incorporated herein by reference.

Section 23. <u>Contract with Bondholders.</u> In consideration of the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds authorized to be issued hereunder by those who shall purchase the same from time to time, this Ordinance shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the Township and the holders from time to time of the Bonds; and the covenants and agreements herein set forth to be performed on behalf of the Township shall be for the benefit, protection and security of the holders or registered owners from time to time of the Bonds. If the Township shall default in the performance of any of its obligations hereunder, under the Bonds or under the Act, the holders or registered owners of the Bonds shall be entitled to all of the rights and remedies provided by the Act in the event of such default.

Section 24. <u>Severability Provision</u>. In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this Ordinance or in the Bonds issued pursuant hereto shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Ordinance or of the Bonds, and this Ordinance or the Bonds shall be construed and enforced as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein or therein.

Section 25. <u>Amendment of Ordinance.</u> The Township may, from time to time and at any time, enact a supplemental ordinance (a) to cure any ambiguity, formal defect or omission in this Ordinance or in any supplemental ordinance; or (b) to grant to and confer upon the holders from time to time of the Bonds any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority or security that may be lawfully granted to or conferred upon same; or (c) to comply with any requirements of the Code after regulations and rulings interpreting the Code are promulgated.

Section 26. <u>Exclusive Effect.</u> Nothing in this Ordinance, expressed or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give any person, firm or corporation other than the Township, its agents, and the registered owners of the Bonds any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Ordinance or any covenant, condition or stipulation hereof; and the covenants, stipulations and agreements contained in this Ordinance are and shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Township, its agents, and the registered owners of the Bonds.

Section 27. <u>Repealer</u>. All ordinances or parts thereof inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed, rescinded, cancelled and annulled.

Signature page follows

ENACTED by the Board of Supervisors of the Township this 17th day of March 2020.

TOWNSHIP OF SOLEBURY Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

BY:

(Vice) Chair, Board of Supervisors

[SEAL]

Attest: B (Assistant) Secretary

\$6,000,000 Township of Solebury General Obligation Bonds

EXHIBIT A

MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL, INTEREST RATE AND DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Attached

					and the second second
TOWNSHIP	2020	RY		Settle Dated	5/15/2020 5/15/2020
	ERIES OF 2	020 - MA)		TERS SCHEDU	CE
1	2	3	4	5	6
Date	MAX <u>Principal</u>	MAX <u>Rate</u>	Interest	Semi-Annual <u>Debt Service</u>	Fiscal Year Debt Service
10/1/2020 4/1/2021	10,000	5.000	113,333.33 150,000.00	113,333.33 160,000.00	113,333.33
10/1/2021 4/1/2022	10,000	5.000	149,750.00 149,750.00	149,750.00 159,750.00	309,750.00
4/1/2022 10/1/2022 4/1/2023	,	5.000	149,500.00	149,500.00 159,500.00	309,250.00
4/1/2023	10,000	0,000	143,000,00	100,000	

10/	1/2022			149,500.00	149,500.00	309,250.00
4/	1/2023	10,000	5.000	149,500.00	159,500.00	
10/	1/2023			149,250.00	149,250.00	308,750.00
4/	1/2024	10,000	5.000	149,250.00	159,250.00	
10/	1/2024			149,000.00	149,000.00	308,250.00
4/	1/2025	10,000	5.000	149,000.00	159,000.00	
10/	1/2025			148,750.00	148,750.00	307,750.00
4/	1/2026	1,775,000	5.000	148,750.00	1,923,750.00	
10/	1/2026			104,375.00	104,375.00	2,028,125.00
4/	1/2027	3,020,000	5.000	104,375.00	3,124,375.00	
10/	1/2027			28,875.00	28,875.00	3,153,250.00
4/	1/2028	1,155,000	5,000	28,875.00	1,183,875.00	
10/	1/2028					1,183,875.00

TOTALS

6,000,000

2,022,333.33 8,022,333.33

8,022,333.33

3/4/2020

\$6,000,000 Township of Solebury General Obligation Bonds

EXHIBIT B

FORM OF BOND

Number GO-

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA COUNTY OF BUCKS

TOWNSHIP OF SOLEBURY

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND SERIES OF

Interest Rate	Matu	rity Date	Dated Date	CUSIP
			an a	. ·
REGISTERED O	WNER:	•	AS NOMINEE OF THE Y TRUST COMPANY	

NEW YORK, NEW YORK

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

THE TOWNSHIP OF SOLEBURY, County of Bucks, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the "Township"), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to be indebted and promises to pay the registered owner hereof or registered assigns, on the above-mentioned maturity date, the above-stated principal amount in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation hereof at the principal corporate trust office of U.S. Bank National Association, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (the "Paying Agent"), or its successor and to pay semi-annually on ______ and ______ of each year, beginning _______, to the registered owner hereof, by check or draft mailed to the registered owner hereof at its address as it appears on the close of business on the ______ day next preceding such interest payment date (the "Record Date") on the

registration books kept by the Paying Agent as Registrar, Paying Agent and Sinking Fund Depository, interest on such principal sum at the rate per annum stated hereon (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), from the interest payment date next preceding the date of registration and authentication of this Bond, unless: (a) this Bond is registered and authenticated as of an interest payment date, in which event this Bond shall bear interest from such interest payment date; or (b) this Bond is registered after a Record Date and before the next succeeding interest payment date, in which event this Bond shall bear interest from such interest payment date; or (c) this Bond is registered and authenticated on or prior to the Record Date next preceding ______, in which event this Bond shall bear interest from _______.

or (d) as shown by the records of the Paying Agent, interest on this Bond shall be in default, in which event this Bond shall bear interest from the date on which interest was last paid on this Bond, until said principal sum is paid. Upon the written request of any holder of \$1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds as of the close of business of the Paying Agent on the Record Date, so long as such written request is received by the Paying Agent not less than 5 days prior to such Record Date, the payment of interest may be made by wire transfer. The Paying Agent shall establish a special record date for the payment of defaulted interest and shall send notice of such dates to each registered owner not less than ten (10) days preceding such special record date but not more than thirty (30) days prior to the payment of such defaulted interest. Such notice shall be sent to persons who are record owners at the close of business on the fifth (5th) day prior to mailing.

This Bond, as to principal or redemption price and interest, is payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America which, at the respective times of payment, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

Under the laws of the Commonwealth, this Bond and the interest thereon shall at all times be free from taxation within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, but this exemption does not extend to gift, estate, succession or inheritance taxes or to any other taxes not levied or assessed directly on this Bond or the interest thereon. Profits, gains or income derived from the sale, exchange or other disposition of this Bond are subject to state and local taxation.

If the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds occurs on a day which is not a Business Day (which is any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, or in the city in which the corporate trust or payment office of the Paying Agent is located are authorized by law or executive order to be closed), the interest and/or principal due on such date shall be payable on the next succeeding Business Day, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of payment.

This Bond is one of a series of bonds of the Township known generally as "General Obligation Bonds, Series of " in the aggregate principal amount of \$_____.

The Bonds maturing on ______ are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part, in direct order of maturity by lot, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption on ______ in the years and in the amounts set forth below:

ł

Bond Maturity Date Principal

* Maturity

The Bonds maturing on or after ______, are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Township, as a whole, or from time to time, in part, on ______, or on any date thereafter upon payment of a redemption price of 100% of principal amount thereof plus interest accrued to the redemption date. In the event that less than all Bonds of any particular maturity are to be redeemed, the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed shall be drawn by lot.

Notice of call for redemption shall be given by the Paying Agent not less than thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption by mailing a copy of the redemption notice to each registered owner appearing on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent, unless such notice is waived by the registered owner. Failure to mail any notice of redemption or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of the redemption of any other bonds for which proper notice shall have been given. Notice having been so given and provision having been made for redemption from funds with the Paying Agent, all interest on Bonds, or portions thereof, called for redemption accruing after the date fixed for redemption shall cease.

The Bonds are issued in accordance with provisions of the Local Government Unit Debt Act, Act No. 177 of December 19, 1996, P.L. 1158 (the "Act") and by virtue of an ordinance duly enacted on ______ (the "Ordinance") by the Township. The Act, as such shall have been in effect when the Bonds were authorized, and the Ordinance shall constitute a contract between the Township and the registered owners, from time to time, of the Bonds.

The Township, in the Ordinance, has established a Sinking Fund with the Paying Agent, as the Sinking Fund Depository, into which funds for the payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds shall be deposited not later than the date fixed for the disbursement thereof. The Township has covenanted in the Ordinance to make payments out of such Sinking Fund or out of any other of its revenues or funds, at such times and in such annual amounts, as shall be sufficient for prompt and full payment of all obligations of this Bond.

It is covenanted with the owners, from time to time, of this Bond, that the Township shall include the amount of the debt service for each fiscal year in which sums are payable in its budget for that year, shall appropriate such amounts to the payment of such debt service, and shall duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal of the Bond and the interest thereon at the date and place and in the manner stated herein, according to the true intent and meaning thereof; and for such budgeting, appropriation and payment, the Township pledges its full faith, credit and taxing power. This covenant shall be specifically enforceable.

The Bonds are issuable only in the form of fully-registered Bonds in the denomination of \$5,000 or any whole multiple thereof.

This Bond is transferable only upon the books of the Township kept for that purpose at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent by the registered owner hereof, in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing, subject to any required tax, fee, or other governmental charge, upon surrender hereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Paying Agent duly executed by the registered owner or such duly-authorized attorney and thereupon the Township shall issue a new fully-registered Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount and series, designation, maturity and interest rate as the surrendered Bond. The Township and any Paying Agent of the Township may treat and consider the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the holder and absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon and for all other purposes whatsoever.

If the Township shall fail to pay the principal of or interest on this Bond when due, or shall otherwise default on any of its obligations hereunder, under the Ordinance or under the Act, the holder of the Bond shall be entitled to all of the rights and remedies provided by the Act in the event of such default.

No covenant or agreement contained in this Bond or the Ordinance shall be deemed to be a covenant or agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the Township in his individual capacity, and no official executing this Bond shall be liable personally on this Bond or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of this Bond.

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, to have happened, and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, or in the creation of the debt of which this is evidence, exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form and manner as required by law; and that the debt represented by this Bond, together with all other debt of the Township, is not in excess of any constitutional or statutory limitation.

This Bond shall not be valid or enforceable unless this Bond shall have been duly authenticated by the Certificate of Authentication endorsed hereon, signed by a duly authorized officer of the Paying Agent. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Township, as provided by the Act and in the Ordinance, has caused this Bond to be executed in its name and in its behalf by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board of Supervisors and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Township and the official seal of the Township or a facsimile thereof to be affixed hereto.

> TOWNSHIP OF SOLEBURY Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

By:_

Chair, Board of Supervisors

Ì

[SEAL]

Attest:

Secretary

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Bond is one of the Bonds, of the Series designated therein, described in the withinmentioned Ordinance.

> U.S. Bank National Association Paying Agent

Date of Authentication:

By:___

Authorized Officer

2287105.1/55080

[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER

FOR VALUE RECEIVED

(the "Transferor"), the under	signed hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		(the "Transferee"),
{Social Security or Federal		
an a	} the within bond and all rights thereunder, and	nd hereby irrevocably
constitutes	and	appoints
•	19111111 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	as
attorney to transfer the within	hand on the books kent for the registration there	of with full nower of

attorney to transfer the within bond on the books kept for the registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Date: _____

Signature(s) Guaranteed:

NOTICE: No bond shall be issued in the name of the Transferee, unless the signature(s) to this Assignment corresponds with the name as it appears upon the face of the within bond in every particular without alteration or enlargement of any change whatever and the security social Federal Employer or Identification Number of the commercial Transferee is supplied. If the Transferee is a trust, the names and Social Security or Federal Employer Identification Numbers of the settlor and beneficiaries of the Trust, the Federal Employer Identification Number and the date of the trust and the name of the trustee should be supplied.

ł

[End of Bond Form]

SOLEBURY TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

DISASTER EMERGENCY DECLARATION

DECLARED MARCH 17, 2020

WHEREAS, COVID-19 has been declared by the World Health Organization and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention a "public health emergency of international concern" and a "pandemic"; and

WHEREAS, the United States of America, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and Bucks County have declared a State of Emergency due to the identification of COVID-19 infected citizens; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors intends to protect Township residents of Solebury Township through this Declaration; and

WHEREAS, emergency management measures are required to reduce the severity of a significant event which would seriously affect the health, safety, and welfare of a substantial number of Township citizens or preclude the operation or use of public facilities and services;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of Solebury Township, pursuant to the provisions of Section 7501(b) of the Pennsylvania Emergency Management Services Code, 35 Pa. C.S.A. 7101 et seq., hereby declares the existence of a public health local disaster emergency in Solebury Township, Bucks County, Pennsylvania.

FURTHER, we authorize that officials of Solebury Township to act as necessary to meet with current exigencies of this emergency by: the employment of temporary workers, the rental of equipment, the purchase of supplies and materials, and entering into such contracts for the performance of public work as may be required to meet the emergency, all without regard to time-consuming procedures and formalities prescribed by law (excepting mandatory constitutional requirements).

FURTHER, we direct the Solebury Township Emergency Management Coordinator to coordinate the activities of the emergency response in coordination with other emergency management officials, and take any other emergency response action deemed necessary to respond to this public health local disaster emergency.

1

THIS DECLARATION WILL TAKE EFFECT IMMEDIATELY ON MARCH 17, 2020.

SOLEBURY TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Mark Baum Baicker, Chair

Attest: Catherine Cataldi, Township Secretary

Date